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September 21, 2015 
 
 
SUBJECT: Letter of Clarification No. 6  

 
REFERENCE: RFP: S69-T25540 Dental – DHMO and Indemnity/DPPO 
 
TO: All Prospective Proposers 
 

 
 

CLARIFICATION NO. 6 
 

FOR  
 

REFERENCE: SOLICITATION: S69-T25540 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) FOR Dental – DHMO AND INDENMITY/DPPO 

 
For which responses for clarification are scheduled to be received to the Finance 

Department Strategic Procurement Division, 2:00 p.m., Central Time on 
September 18, 2015. 

 
The following changes and/or revisions are incorporated into the above 
referenced RFP Document a noted.  All other provisions and requirements as 
originally set forth remain enforce and are binding. 
 

1. The following questions and requests for clarification were submitted in accordance 
 with the instructions provided, Communications between the City and 
 Respondents. The City’s response (in bold italics) follows each question or 
 request for clarification in the table below: 

 
CLARIFICATIONS TO QUESTIONS 

 
 

Question 1: Regarding the hardcopy submission of the proposal, paragraph 4 (Format) on 
page 14 of the RFP (T25540) states that “material should be organized following 
the order of the submission requirements separated by labeled tabs”. Should any 
of the items listed below be included in one of the five tabs specified in the 
submission requirements in paragraph B on page 14 (1. Transmittal Letter, 2. 
Schedule, 3. M/WBE, 4. Legal actions, 5. Conflict of Interest), or can separate 
tabs be created as needed? 
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 The questionnaire on ProposalTech 

 Required forms to be submitted with proposal 

 Additional documentation to be included by proposer. 
 

COH Response: You may add additional sections and tabs as needed. 

Question 2: Does the City of Houston claim premium tax exemption for dental insurance? 
COH Response: The City pays dental premiums through a Single Non-Profit Trust (SNPT) 

Agreement as permitted by the Texas Insurance Code Section 
222.002(c)(5)(A), which provides an exemption from state premium taxes 
for municipalities, counties and hospital districts.   

Question 3: Please provide a list of the current MWBE vendors participating on the contract. 
COH Response: As indicated in Letter of Clarification #2, items that are eligible for 

satisfaction of the MWBE goal include dental services, printing costs, 
laboratories, translation services, marketing services and any others listed 
in the current City of Houston MWBE directory.  The directory may be 
obtained at:  

https://houston.mwdbe.com/FrontEnd/VendorSearchPublic.asp 

Any MWBE dentists may also be credentialed by the vendors and listed in 
network directories. 

Question 4: Is the current dental carrier meeting the City's MWBE requirements? 
COH Response: The current carrier has made a good faith effort toward meeting their 

MWBE goal. 
Question 5: Please confirm the expected number of open enrollment meetings, health fairs 

and new hire meetings the City plans to have. Is there a time frame for these 
meetings? 

COH Response: The City of Houston conducts open enrollment meetings from mid-March 
through mid-April each year.  To-date, the number and locations of these 
meetings, if any, have not been determined for the 2016-2017 plan year.  
New hire orientation meetings are conducted in-house by HR personnel 
and do not require attendance by the benefits providers. 

Question 6: Please clarify if the MWBE goal is 11% of the annual premium or 11% of the 
annual administrative fee. 

COH Response: As indicated in Letter of Clarification #2, the MWBE goal has been 
approved at 11% of the portion of total annual premium (plan cost) that is 
attributable to administrative services.  The administrative services 
percentage (not the goal) may be modified annually upon written request 
by the contractor 30 days in advance of May 1 each year.  The goal will 
remain at 11% throughout the life of the contract. 

Question 7: Please provide a more detailed PPO/Indemnity benefit booklet that includes 
exclusions and limitations. 

COH Response: Under the “Manage Documents” section on ProposalTech, see the Exhibit 
published on September 4, 2015 entitled “RFP Sample Group Dental 
Indemnity Agreement – DPPO,” page 34, #7 – Limitations. 

Question 8: Can compact discs be substituted for thumb drives? 
COH Response: A thumb drive is preferred over a compact disc. 
Question 9: What qualifications and responsibilities are you looking for in the on-site 

customer service representative position? 
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COH Response: The individual should have at least three years of experience in healthcare 
customer service, be professional, calm under pressure and well versed in 
the City of Houston’s dental plans and the vendor’s IT systems.   Primary 
responsibilities will include but not be limited to: 

1. Conferring with members by telephone, email, or in person regarding 
questions related to dental plan designs and services, eligibility, 
enrollment, claims and complaints. 

2. Responding to and resolving customers' problems / complaints during 
first contact whenever possible.  Providing updates every 48 hours (2 days) 
until the customers’ issues are resolved.  

3. Keeping records of customer interactions, recording details of inquiries, 
complaints, and comments, as well as actions taken. 

4. Contacting customers in order to respond to inquiries or to notify them 
of claim investigation results and any planned adjustments. 

6. Referring unresolved customer grievances for further investigation 
through grievance procedures. 
 

Question 10: Must the on-site customer service representative be a vendor employee?  Can it 
be satisfied through an agency with a vendor-trained contractor? 

COH Response: The City of Houston prefers that the on-site representative be an employee 
of the vendor; however, this point is negotiable.  If the on-site 
representative is a contractor, the vendor-contractor relationship must be 
transparent and the contractor must have full commitment to the City of 
Houston. 

Question 11: Please confirm the Performance Standards tab referenced on Page 14 of the 
RFP goes in the Technical Proposal. 

COH Response: Yes.  The Performance Standards should be included as part of the 
technical proposal. 

Question 12: Regarding the hardcopy submission of the proposal, paragraph 6 (Packaging 
and Labeling) on page 14 of the RFP (T25540) states that “the Price Proposal 
shall be submitted in a separate sealed envelope”. Section 11.15 (Cost 
Quotation) of the questionnaire on ProposalTech contains price information. 
Would the City prefer section 11.15 of the questionnaire be submitted in a 
separate envelope with the rest of the Price Proposal (separately from the rest of 
the questionnaire), or would the City prefer the entire questionnaire on 
ProposalTech be submitted in either the Price Proposal or the Technical 
Proposal? 

COH Response: The only sections in the RFP responses that should be provided in a 
separate sealed envelope are those sections related to Cost Quotation – 
Sections 11.15.1 (DHMO Pricing) and 11.15.2 (Indemnity/DPPO Pricing).  All 
other sections should be included with the technical portion of the 
proposal. 

Question 13: Should Exhibits 7A-7C and Exhibit 8 go in the Price Proposal or the Technical 
Proposal? 

COH Response: See response to question #12. 
Question 14: Do the exhibits entitled, “DHMO_Dental_Benefits, Indemnity_Dental_Limitations, 

and DHMO_ Dental_Limitations,” go in the Price Proposal or the Technical 
Proposal? 
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COH Response: See response to question #12. 
Question 15: If the questionnaire in ProposalTech is segregated between price and technical 

proposals, should  any part(s) of sections 11.7, 11.8, 11.10 and 11.11 be 
included in the Price Proposal? 

COH Response: See response to question #12. 
Question 16: Is Exhibit C, referenced in question 11.8.6, the same form as Exhibit 10B - 

Deviations from Specifications - Indemnity/DPPO? If these forms are different, 
can you please provide Exhibit C? 

COH Response: Deviations from Specifications are to be listed in Exhibit 10A – DHMO and 
10B – Indemnity/DPPO. 

Question 17: Does the City absolutely require a reinsurance arrangement for any portion of 
the contract? If yes, how much should the amount of the policy be? 

COH Response: This question was referred to the City of Houston’s Legal and Risk 
Management Departments on September 14, 2015 for their decision.  As 
soon as a response is received, it will be posted. 

Question 18: Although the rates remained the same throughout the 36 month time frame, 
except for the increase on 5/1/2015 of 5%, the PEPM continues to decrease 
although the enrollment increases. 

COH Response: This question was referred to the incumbent carrier.  As soon as a 
response is received, it will be posted. 

 
 
 

END OF CLARIFICATION NO. 6 
 

 
Should you have any additional questions or request further clarification regarding this 
proposal, please contact Regina Spencer at regina.spencer@houstontx.gov or at (832) 393-
8707. 

 
Sincerely, 

Regina Spencer 
Regina Spencer 
Sr. Procurement Specialist 
 
 
CH/rrs 
 
cc: File 


